

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

Introduction

Internal Audit is a statutory independent review function, covered by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2005 (Wales). It is set up within the Finance Division as a service to the Council, and all levels of management. It supports the Head of Finance, the “responsible officer” (Section 151 officer under the Local Government Act 1972), in meeting her statutory responsibilities for the proper administration of financial affairs.

Deleted: Cabinet

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) published in 2013 define the activity and standards that must be met. They are mandatory for all internal audit departments in the UK public sector.

They include a Code of Ethics which Internal Auditors must conform to, covering integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and competency.

The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner.

Definition of Internal Audit

The PSIAS state that ‘Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.’

It may also undertake consulting services at the request of the organisation, subject to there being no impact on the core assurance work and the availability of skills and resources.

Deleted: In the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006, The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy (CIPFA) states that ‘Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment, comprising risk management, control and governance, by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.’

Role and Scope of Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit is to provide the Authority, through the Audit Committee with an independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance arrangements. The department reviews, appraises and reports on:

- The adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of financial, operational and management control and their operation in practice in relation to the business risks to be addressed;

Deleted: non-assurance work,

Deleted: Authority

Deleted: key

Deleted: ¶

- The extent of compliance with and relevance of, policies, standards, plans and procedures established by the County Council and the extent of compliance with external laws and regulations, including reporting requirements of regulatory bodies;
- The extent to which the assets and interests are acquired economically, used efficiently, accounted for and safeguarded from losses of all kinds arising from waste, extravagance, inefficient administration, poor value for money, fraud or other cause, and that adequate business continuity plans exist;
- The suitability, accuracy, reliability and integrity of financial and other management information and the means used to identify, measure, clarify and report such information;
- The integrity of processes and systems, including those under development, to ensure that controls offer adequate protection against error, fraud and loss of all kinds; and that the process aligns with the Council's strategic goals;
- The follow-up action taken to remedy weaknesses identified by Internal Audit review, ensuring that good practice is identified and communicated widely;
- The operation of the Council's corporate governance arrangements;
- The potential within the Council for fraud and other violations through the analysis of systems of control in high-risk operations.

The Internal Audit department completes advisory / consultancy work in agreement with Directors, Heads of Service and Senior Managers by responding to requests for audit reviews and by contributing to projects and working groups throughout the Authority.

Deleted: acting

Where the Authority has entered into a partnership with other organisations the partnership arrangement will be subject to review. In addition, where Flintshire County Council is the lead authority of a partnership or collaboration, the work undertaken will be subject to review by Flintshire Internal Audit.

All managers are responsible for applying controls to reasonably prevent and detect fraud. Furthermore, internal audit is not responsible for identifying fraud, however it will assess the risk of fraud and be aware of the risk of fraud when planning and undertaking any internal audit work. All actual or suspected incidents of fraud, corruption or impropriety should be reported without delay to Internal Audit in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules (ref 11.17e). The internal audit department investigates fraud and irregularity in terms of:

- The undertaking of investigations into reports of violations of the Council's

regulations or criminal activities i.e. fraud against the Council

- The undertaking of investigations of reports from staff, other persons engaged in activities on behalf of the Council and members of the public, reporting perceived cases of possible violations of rules or regulations, mismanagement, misconduct, or fraudulent abuse of authority.

The investigation of Housing and Council Tax Benefit fraud is undertaken by the Benefits Fraud Team, however Internal Audit will overview these procedures.

Where it is thought necessary, External Audit may conduct investigations, either in liaison with Internal Audit or independently.

Independence and Authority

Internal Audit is independent of the activities that it audits to ensure the unbiased judgements essential to its proper conduct and impartial advice to management.

To ensure independence, Internal Audit operates within a framework that gives it the authority to:

- have unrestricted access to all activities undertaken in the Council.
- have unrestricted access to all functions, records and property, including those of partner organisations. In very exceptional circumstances if the “responsible officer” (Section 151 Officer) and Monitoring Officer believe this would constitute a breach of the laws of confidentiality, or the provisions of the Human Rights Act or the Data Protection Act the matter will be referred to the Audit Committee for consideration.
- have full and free access to the Audit Committee via the Internal Audit Manager, and an annual private meeting with the committee;
- have full and free access to the Chief Executive, Head of Finance, Monitoring Officer, Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit Committee and External Auditors via the Internal Audit Manager;
- have unrestricted access to senior management, members and all employees;
- receive any information and explanation considered necessary concerning any matter under consideration from all Members and Officers;
- require any employee of the Council to produce or account for cash, stores or any other Council asset or asset of a third party under his or her control;
- allocate resources, set timeframes, define review areas, develop scopes of work and apply techniques to accomplish the overall audit objectives;
- issue audit reports in its own name.

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial, 12 pt

The Internal Audit department is part of the Finance Division within Corporate Services and the Manager reports to the Head of Finance and through her to the Corporate Management Team. He also reports to the Audit Committee.

The department's budget is approved annually as part of the Council's overall budget. Remuneration and arrangements for the appointment and removal of the Internal Audit Manager are managed in accordance with the Council's adopted HR policies.

The Audit Committee is responsible for

- approving the internal audit charter
- approving the internal audit plan
- receiving reports from the Internal Audit Manager on the departments performance relative to its plan and other matters
- making appropriate enquiries of management and the Internal Audit Manager to determine whether there are inappropriate scope or resource limitations

Formatted: Indent: First line: 6 pt, Tabs: 60 pt, List tab + Not at 36 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 42 pt, Tabs: 60 pt, List tab + Not at 36 pt

Every effort is made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all members of internal audit staff are free from any conflicts of interest and do not undertake any non-audit duties. Internal Audit has complete segregation from Council operations and is not responsible for the management of areas that are audited. The Internal Audit Manager and internal audit staff are not authorised to:

Deleted: audit

- perform any operational duties associated with the Authority;
- initiate or approve accounting transactions on behalf of the Authority
- direct the activities of any employee unless specifically seconded to Internal Audit

Audit Responsibility

The primary task of Internal Audit is to review the systems of internal control operating throughout the authority, and in doing this it will adopt a predominantly risk-based approach to audit.

The Internal Audit Manager is required to manage the provision of a complete audit service to the Council that will include systems, regularity, computer and advisory audit in addition to the investigation of potential fraud and irregularity. In discharge of this duty, the Internal Audit Manager has a responsibility to:

- prepare a rolling strategic risk-based audit plan in consultation with Directorate senior management and the Corporate Management Team, for formal ~~approval~~ by the ~~Audit Committee~~. ~~This strategic plan is regarded as flexible rather than as an immutable expression of audit policy;~~

Deleted: departmental

Deleted: ratification

Deleted: Head of Finance and

- translate the strategic plan into annual plans for formal agreement with the Head of Finance, Corporate Management Team and Audit Committee;
- implement the audit plan as approved, including any additional work requested by management and the Audit Committee;
- ensure that the scopes of individual audit assignments are agreed with departmental management;
- prepare and maintain an Audit Manual detailing departmental procedures and standards;
- ensure a system of close supervision of audit work, and maintain a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme of internal and external assessments;
- maintain knowledge, skills and expertise within the section specifically for the investigation of fraud and irregularity;
- bring a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and report on the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes;
- highlight control weaknesses and required associated improvements together with corrective action recommended to management based on an acceptable and practicable timeframe;
- undertake follow up reviews and recommendation tracking to ensure management has implemented agreed internal control improvements within specified and agreed timeframes;
- liaise with the external auditor for the purpose of providing optimal audit coverage to the Authority;
- prepare, for agreement with the Head of Finance, annual reports on audit and special investigation activities for presentation to the Audit Committee, and such other reports on audit issues as may be required by the Head of Finance or the Audit Committee.

Deleted: s

Deleted: q

Deleted: a

Deleted: review of audit files through the supervisory structure

All audit work contributes to the overall review of effectiveness of the control environment. The Internal Audit Manager is also a member of the Corporate Governance Working Group which undertakes this review and prepares the draft Annual Governance Statement for consideration by the Audit Committee and Council.

All Internal Audit activity is carried out in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules and PSIAS requirements. In order to maintain an audit presence and sound, informal lines of communication, as much audit work as possible will be done on location. Internal Audit testing may go beyond the records and involve observations and interviews.

Deleted: Regulations, CIPFA

Deleted: IIA

Audit Resources

The staffing structure of the section will comprise qualified Internal Auditors, Accountants and Accounting Technicians with a mix of professional specialisms to reflect the varied functions of the section.

Internal Audit will not participate in the day-to-day operation of any systems of internal financial control. However, in strict emergency situations only, audit personnel may be called upon to carry out non-audit work on a temporary basis.

Upon request from the Head of Finance, appropriate specialists from other Directorates and departments should be made available to take part in any audit review requiring specialist knowledge.

Audit Training

The Internal Audit Manager carries out a continuous review of the development and training needs of all audit personnel through the Authority's appraisal system and will arrange, within budget provision, in-service training covering both internal and external courses.

Specific resources are devoted to specialised training in relation to computer audit, contract audit and fraud investigation to keep abreast of developments.

Audit Reporting

All audit assignments are the subject of formal reports. Debrief meetings are held with the managers responsible for the area under review for agreement to the factual accuracy of findings. After agreement, draft reports are issued to the manager and director of the department under review. Once the recommendations and action points have been agreed, final reports are issued. The Internal Audit Manager considers the release of special investigations audit reports for disciplinary purposes on a case-by-case basis. Access to audit files is restricted to the Head of Finance and External Auditor, and the Monitoring Officer where it is within his remit.

The Internal Audit Manager issues progress reports to the Audit Committee and management summarising outcomes of audit activities, including follow up reviews and the tracking of audit recommendations. These are presented at every Audit Committee meeting.

The assignment opinions that audit provides during the year are part of the framework of assurances that assist the Authority to prepare an informed Annual Governance Statement.

Internal Audit provides the Head of Finance with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority's governance, risk management and control arrangements. In giving the opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute, the most that can be provided is a reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in governance, risk management and control processes. The annual opinion is provided in the Annual Report after the year end.

Performance Reporting

Performance Indicators for Internal Audit are reported to each Audit Committee meeting and to the Head of Finance.

The department participates in benchmarking within the Wales Chief Auditors Group.

Results are reported to the Audit Committee.

Deleted: also via the quarterly Performance Report

Deleted: and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Deleted: CIPFA and

Deleted: through the Performance Report.

Related Documents

This document is one of a series that, together, constitute the policies of the Council in relation to anti-fraud and corruption measures. The other documents are:

- Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules;
- Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy;
- Fraud and Irregularity Response Plan;
- Whistle-blowing Policy;
- Disciplinary Procedure